
Middleton Westport Joint Zoning Committee Agenda
Wednesday, October 28, 2020       6:00 PM

Virtual meeting via www.zoom.us

 Zoom Meeting ID: 947 5980 5896   Password: 8675309
Call-in: (312) 626-6799*

Posted on the City's web site at meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/ 

Instructions on Participating in a Zoom Meeting

Roll Call

Approval of Minutes

1) Minutes of June 25, 2020, MWJZC meeting

Agenda Items

1) Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review – Cross Lutheran Church--
Phase 1, Texas Longhorn Drive / West of CTH M (PC-2577)
BACKGROUND: See Planning staff memo dated 10/23/20. 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the SIP, including the site plan and building design, and 
recommend Common Council approval of the SIP, contingent on the items listed in the staff 
memo. 
ENCLOSURES: Opitz memo dated 10/23/20, Vierbicher submittal 9/22/20, Westport Res. 20-
07, emails listing changes, Revised building renderings

2) Certified Survey Map – Cross Lutheran Church, Texas Longhorn Drive / West of 
CTH M (PC-2577)
BACKGROUND: This extraterritorial CSM creates two lots belong to the church and an outlot 
encompassing the street leading to the church. City engineering staff confirmed that there are 
no apparent errors in the bearings and distances as shown. 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the extraterritorial CSM contingent on compliance with all 
terms of the SIP and any other conditions or restrictions required by the Town of Westport. 
ENCLOSURES: CSM (6 pages)

Adjournment

*Anyone concerned about long-distance charges should contact Mark for a toll-free number at (608) 821-8394

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance 
at this meeting to gather information; however, no action will be taken by any governmental body at this meeting other than the 
governmental body specifically referenced in this notice.

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the American With Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the 
meeting to be in an accessible location or format must contact the City Administrator at (608) 821-8350, 7426 Hubbard Ave., Middleton, 
WI at least 24 hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each 
request.

1

http://www.zoom.us/
http://meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/


NOTICE OF ONLINE MEETING

Due to the public health emergency that has been declared for the COVID-19 outbreak, the State of 
Wisconsin is encouraging community interventions such as physical distancing, replacing in-person 
meetings with remote communications when possible, and other precautions that can help minimize 
further spread of COVID-19 in our community.  The City of Middleton has set this as an online meeting 
with remote participation to promote social distancing and help protect our community.

Governmental bodies can meet their obligation for open public meetings while practicing physical 
distancing to help protect public health by conducting meetings via telephone conference calls as long as 
the public is provided with an effective way to monitor such calls.

At the request of the Common Council, this Zoom meeting will be recorded.

To Participate in an Online Zoom Meeting:

Computer:  First time users will need to download and run the Zoom client app (zoom.us) for your 
computer.  It may be easiest to use a laptop computer with built-in camera and microphone, or a desktop 
computer with a headset or speakers/microphone.  If you would like to speak during the meeting but do 
not have a microphone on your computer, you will need to call in with a phone.

Smartphone/Tablet:  First time users will need to download and run the Zoom client app (zoom.us) for 
your iPhone, iPad or Android device to join the meeting with your smartphone or tablet.

Join Meeting:  To join the online meeting, open the Zoom app, click “Join a Meeting,” and enter the 
Meeting ID and Password printed at the top of the agenda.

Phone:  If needed, call either   +1 (253) 215-8782   or   +1 (301) 715-8592 and enter the Meeting ID and 
Password printed at the top of the agenda.  These are long-distance numbers, so there may be charges 
depending on your calling plan. If you do not have a long distance plan, please contact Abby Attoun, 
Director of Planning & Community Development, at (608) 821-8343 to receive a toll free number for 
participation. 

Technical difficulties?  If you experience difficulties while trying to connect to the meeting, please see 
the help center resources at zoom.us, or call or text the Zoom help line at:  +1 (888) 799-9666 ext. 2.

Tips for Zoom Use

 If you don’t have a camera, that’s fine.  You’ll still be able to see and hear everything, and 
participate in discussion as appropriate.  Your video participant box will just appear black (or with 
your static Zoom profile picture, if you upload one).  In any event, your participant box will have 
your name in it, as you entered it.  Please enter your name instead of phone number so it will be 
easier for others to see who's participating in the meeting.  You can edit your name in the 
Participant Video Panel section of the screen if needed.

Instructions on Participating in a Zoom Meeting

Page 1 of 22

http://www.zoom.us/
http://www.zoom.us/
http://www.zoom.us/


 When in the meeting, activate your sound and camera when ready (microphone and video 
camera symbols should be in the lower left portion of screen).  The Zoom software includes 
functionality for you to test the microphone and camera to ensure they’re working.

 Committee members are expected to participate in discussion freely.  Participants are asked to 
leave their microphone muted until called on to speak.  If a member of the audience would like 
to say something, please raise your hand and wait to be recognized by the chair.

 To raise your hand during the meeting, click on the icon labeled "Participants" at the bottom 
center of your screen.  At the bottom of the pop-up participants window, click the button labeled 
"Raise Hand."

 You may see the meeting participants displayed across the top of your screen in a video panel 
above the host’s shared screen view.  If you’d prefer to show the participant video panel to the 
right of the shared screen, which is often a more efficient use of screen space, click the “View 
Options” drop-down menu at the top of the screen and check the “Side-by-side Mode” option.

 In “Side-by-side Mode” you can modify your view of the participants by choosing Gallery View 
(everybody) or Speaker View (active speaker only) at the top of the participant video panel.  The 
participant panel can be enlarged or reduced by dragging the gray vertical separator to the left or 
right.

 Motions:  When making or seconding a motion, Committee members are asked to state their 
name first so everybody will know who is speaking.

 Votes:  Unless votes are clearly unanimous, staff will take votes by roll call. 

Page 2 of 23



MIDDLETON-WESTPORT JOINT ZONING COMMITTEE 
Thursday, June 25, 2020    6:00 p.m.

MEETING MINUTES 
These minutes are not final until they are formally approved at a subsequent meeting

Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at http://meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/
A recording of the meeting is available at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wfIm-YaXq4g&t=447s 

Roll Call

Chair Sipsma called the meeting to order at 6:08 p.m. The meeting was conducted online only via 
the Zoom platform. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Dean Grosskopf, Cynthia Kennedy, Jen Murray, Kurt Paulsen, Ken 
Sipsma
MEMBERS ABSENT: Mike Slavish
OTHERS PRESENT:  Mark Opitz, Neal Smith, Tom Wilson, Tim Wohlers

Election of Chair, Vice-Chair

Sipsma requested nominations for Chair.  Paulsen nominated Sipsma, seconded by Kennedy. There 
were no other nominations, and Sipsma was elected unanimously. 

Sipsma requested nominations for Vice-Chair.  Kennedy nominated Paulsen, seconded by Murray. 
There were no other nominations, and Paulsen was elected unanimously. 

Approval of Minutes

Motion by Murray, seconded by Kennedy, to approve the draft minutes of November 20, 2019, as 
prepared. Motion passed 5-0.

Public Hearing

1) General Implementation Plan Amendment, Community of Bishops Bay, The Farm and 
Reserve Hill Neighborhoods--Relocate 13 Residential Lots for Church and School—
Texas Longhorn Drive (PC-2577)

Wilson provided background information and recapped the actions taken by the Town Board and 
both the City and Town Plan Commissions. Opitz noted that the Middleton Common Council can 
hold its required hearing on July 21 pending approval by the joint committee.

Chair Sipsma opened the hearing at 6:16 p.m.

Pastor Joel Brandt, Cross Lutheran Church, stated that the congregation is excited to build in this 
location. He believes that their project will be a blessing for the community and help spur more 
homebuilding in the area.

Minutes of June 25, 2020, MWJZC meeting

Page 1 of 24

http://meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wfIm-YaXq4g&t=447s


MIDDLETON/WESTPORT JOINT ZONING COMMITTEE MINUTES June 25, 2020

G:\Data\Admin\AD2017\Commit\PBT\08-30minPBT.doc 

Neal Smith, board member of Holy Wisdom Monastery, asked the following questions:
 What is the anticipated size of the congregation?
 What time would there be services?

Pastor Brandt responded that the congregation currently has 110 members, and he anticipates low 
traffic on Sunday mornings with a small amount of traffic on some weekday evenings. He noted that 
the church will be served by two access points, via Highway Q and Oncken Road. 

There being no one else present who wished to speak, Chair Sipsma closed the hearing at 6:21 p.m.

Agenda Items

2) General Implementation Plan Amendment, Community of Bishops Bay, The Farm and 
Reserve Hill Neighborhoods--Relocate 13 Residential Lots for Church and School—
Texas Longhorn Drive (PC-2577)

Wilson highlighted conditions, noting the additional one added by City’s Plan Commission. He 
stated that there are plans to install a traffic signal at Hwy M/Bishops Bay Parkway, Dane County is 
planning to install one at Hwy M/Oncken Rd. in 2023, and Hwy Q running past the church will only 
consist of two lanes.

Moved by Paulsen, seconded by Kennedy, to approve the GIP Amendment with the 13 revisions and 
restrictions as listed in Town of Westport Resolution 20-04 along with the City Plan Commission’s 
additional contingency that the layout and dimensions of the athletic field area be shown as part of 
Specific Implementation Plan for Phase 1 of the church project. Motion passed 5-0.

Adjournment

Moved by Grosskopf, seconded by Murray, to adjourn.  Motion passed, and the meeting adjourned 
at 6:30 p.m.

Minutes prepared by Mark Opitz, City Planner and Zoning Administrator. These minutes should not be 
considered finalized until they are formally approved at a subsequent meeting of the Committee. 

Page 2 of 25



PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
CITY OF MIDDLETON PH 608.821-8394 FAX 608.827.1080
7426 HUBBARD AVENUE E-MAIL: mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us  
MIDDLETON, WI  53562-3118 WEB:  www.CityofMiddleton.us 

Date: October 23, 2020
To: Middleton Plan Commission and Middleton / Westport Joint Zoning Committee
From: Mark Opitz, City Planner & Zoning Administrator
Re: SIP and Design Review – Cross Lutheran Church—Phase 1, The Community of 

Bishops Bay/Texas Longhorn Drive (Middleton ETZ) (PC 2577)

At their respective meetings on June 25 and July 21, the Middleton/Westport Joint Zoning 
Committee and Middleton Common Council held public hearings and then adopted an amendment 
to the Community of Bishops Bay General Implementation Plan to allow the proposed church in 
this portion of the development. The GIP amendment was based on the contingences included in 
Westport Resolution 20-04 along with the contingency that the layout and dimensions of the 
athletic field area be shown as part of the Specific Implementation Plan for Phase 1 of the church 
project. 

The project engineer has submitted an SIP pertaining to Phase 1 of the project. Vierbicher has also 
submitted a 3-lot Certified Survey Map that pertains to the entire project. Both the SIP and CSM 
appear consistent with the amended GIP and applicable City and Town ordinances. Both the 
Westport Plan Commission and Westport Town Board have recommended approval (see excerpts 
from draft meeting minutes below).

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the SIP (including the site plan), and recommend approval to the Common Council, based 
on the materials submitted by the project engineer on 9/22/20 but substituting the revised building 
renderings submitted on 10/19/20, and with the 21 contingencies as listed in Town of Westport 
Resolution 20-07. 

PREVIOUS APPROVALS

Town of Westport Plan Commission, October 12:

After an introduction by Wilson, a presentation by the applicant, questions were answered, and a 
lengthy discussion, the SIP and Design Review, Cross Lutheran Church, The Community of 
Bishops Bay/Texas Longhorn Drive (Middleton ETZ), was recommended for approval and 
approved as applicable and as presented with conditions and restrictions as recommended by staff 
in the agenda memo presented (Compliance with the elements of Resolution 20-04 that remain 
applicable; comments that come in from the fire dept., town engineer, town maintenance staff, and 
WAEMS as approved by the Town Administrator; build generally as presented subject to other 

Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review –...Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review –...Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review –...Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review –...Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review –...

Page 1 of 406

mailto:mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us
http://www.cityofmiddleton.us/
http://www.cityofmiddleton.us/


conditions; a CSM consistent with the proposal that contains all Town standard conditions; 
easements as necessary for access and utilities; all lighting and fixtures to be final approved by the 
Town Administrator prior to installation; Wilson to review and approve any restriction documents; 
maintain SIP and Design Review over any additional new structures; maintain all plat easements, 
covenants, and restrictions; municipal water and sewer shall be provided to the church as approved 
by the Town Utility Manager, Town Engineer, and Town Administrator; stormwater and erosion 
control measures to comply with those already approved for the area through the GIP and approved 
by the Town Engineer; revisions to any environmental corridors consistent with the GIP approval or 
other minor land use revisions as may be necessary to effectuate this approval to be undertaken by 
Town or City staff and consultants; a review and report from the Town Engineer that parking meets 
the standards for the site and use, and that traffic for the proposed use will be appropriately and 
safely handled by the current roadways and traffic control in the area; and, subject to further 
approvals and restrictions or conditions precedent recommended and approved by the Town Board 
and City Council), on a motion by Kennedy, second Bruskewitz, and with the following additions:

 Commissioners would like to see more red and barn board on the building, especially on the 
west and east sides, and potentially on the south side, with the applicant to submit revised 
plans showing the same consistent with the discussion at the meeting to be approved after 
review by Grosskopf, Cuccia and Wilson;

 Landscape plan should include no invasives and the plan shall be reviewed by Wilson when 
finalized in order to ascertain there are no invasive plants in the plan (prefer native plants to 
tie into the adjoining prairies); 

 Proposed temporary gravel driveway must be paved within 5 years of occupancy or when 
Phase II is approved, whichever comes first; 

 The property shall comply with the Town's Exterior Lighting Ordinance as included in the 
staff recommendation, and additionally that exterior lights will follow the same guidelines 
established for the neighboring Inspire child care facility as to timing; 

 Applicants shall provide to the Town a rendering showing the exterior of all phases 
including a rendering of the final development, as soon as possible, and for this approval to 
be effective; 

 Project engineer must submit a stormwater plan that meets development guidelines per staff 
recommendation;

 Wilson, Cuccia, Grosskopf, and Town Engineer Kevin Even to review and approve this 
additional information; and, 

 Additional information will be sent to Commissioners for further comment that may become 
part of the approval.

Signage was not part of this submission so design review over all signage is maintained by the Plan 
Commission. 

Town of Westport Board action on October 19:

After a presentation by Wilson, comments by Pastor Brandt, and discussion, Resolution 20-07 
[Recommend Approval of SIP and Design Review, Cross Lutheran Church, The Community of 
Bishops Bay/Texas Longhorn Drive (Middleton ETZ)] was adopted as presented and as 
recommended by the Town Plan Commission on a motion by Sipsma, seco

Page 2 of 407



Page 3 of 408



Page 4 of 409



Page 5 of 4010



Page 6 of 4011



Page 7 of 4012



Page 8 of 4013



Page 9 of 4014



Page 10 of 4015



Page 11 of 4016



Page 12 of 4017



Page 13 of 4018



Page 14 of 4019



Page 15 of 4020



Page 16 of 4021



Page 17 of 4022



Page 18 of 4023



Page 19 of 4024



Page 20 of 4025



Page 21 of 4026



Page 22 of 4027



Page 23 of 4028



Page 24 of 4029



Page 25 of 4030



Page 26 of 4031



Page 27 of 4032



Page 28 of 4033



Page 29 of 4034



Page 30 of 4035



Page 31 of 4036



Page 32 of 4037



Page 33 of 4038



Page 34 of 4039



Page 35 of 4040



Page 36 of 4041



Page 37 of 4042



Minor changes made subsequent to feedback from Town of Westport officials

(addressing the condition of approval)

From: Jackie Wolke <jwolke@gdg-architects.com> 
Sent: Monday, October 19, 2020 2:08 PM
To: Tom Wilson <twilson@townofwestport.org>; Pastor Joel Brandt <brandtj@crosslutheran.church>
Cc: Paul Barribeau <pbarribeau@gdg-architects.com>
Subject: RE: Cross Lutheran Church SIP/Design Review Approval Resolution for review

Tom,

Attached please find the updated renderings for the proposed Cross Lutheran Middleton Church.  In the 
updated images, we believe, we addressed the concerns of the committee.  We added more red overall 
and a little more barn board on the east side.  We do want to stress that the barn board is one of the 
more expensive products on the building and would like to reiterate that the barn board may become a 
synthetic or phenolic type material in order to keep costs low.  We are currently working with the 
contractor to make sure we are still within budget.

I hope these images will further address the concerns of the committee and if there are any questions, 
please let me know.

Thank you,

Jackie Wolke

GROTH Design Group, Inc.

N58 W6181 Columbia Road

Cedarburg, WI  53012

Office: 262.377.8001

From: Tom Wilson <twilson@townofwestport.org>   (lightly edited)
Sent: Friday, October 23, 2020 8:15 AM

Wanted to pass this on to you as requested at the Plan Commission meeting on the Church.  Please see 
the attached (renderings) (“Renderings w- South Option 3 small.pdf”) which shows revised building 
elevations consistent with discussions at the (Westport) Plan Commission…  It has been approved by 
John (Cuccia), Dean (Grosskopf) and I, with some added barn wood to the south elevation as noted 
below. 

I told them it looked good to me but wanted perhaps some smaller section of barn wood on the south 
elevation, maybe even just 20 feet wide by 10 feet high, to look like a barn door.

John also liked what he saw and told me this regarding the current building appearance:  

Page 38 of 4043

mailto:jwolke@gdg-architects.com
mailto:twilson@townofwestport.org
mailto:brandtj@crosslutheran.church
mailto:pbarribeau@gdg-architects.com


“I like what they have done, it really speaks to the rural nature a lot better than the mostly grey 
facade treatment they originally proposed. The added red and barn board gives the building a 
better blend with the area (a bit less institutional) which is important in my view considering this 
facility is in a residential neighborhood. I have no problem with the south facade as presented in 
response to their budget concerns and considering that it will be covered up in coming phases, 
also as stated in the pastor's email the barn board is an expensive material that he wants to 
minimize. I think using a phenolic wood patterned material is an excellent option if it is indeed 
cheaper than barnboard. For your reference; the wood siding on the Waunakee Community 
Bank at the corner of Hwy Q and Water Wheel Drive is sided with a wood patterned phenolic 
material.

All in all I think they did a nice job of tweaking the design as requested, I like what they did.”

Dean agreed and said, “I agree with you guys. All but the south view look great, but the south view could 
be punched up a bit more. A door sized barnwood feature might help.  I’m ok if you guys are at this 
point….”

I did ask them to get back to me with a reply and let me know if this is ok, then we can sign off on the 
building appearance after the south elevation is revised consistent with this.

Next we can work on the full layout and how this fits in…..

Page 39 of 4044



PROJECT 

ISSUE

PROJECT INFO

SHEET TITLE

Date

Project No.

© Groth Design Group, Inc.

These documents reflect progress 
and intent and may be subject to 
change, including additional detail. 
These are not final construction 
documents and should not be used 
for final bidding or construction-
related purposes.

PROGRESS 

DOCUMENTS

N58 W6181 COLUMBIA RD.
P.O. BOX 332
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN 53012

PH.  (262) 377-8001
FX.   (262) 377-8003

1
0

/1
9

/2
0

2
0

 1
2

:0
2

:2
4

 P
M

08.18.2020

16.048

RENDERED BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A203

CROSS LUTHERAN

PHASE 1: NEW

BUILDING

BISHOPS BAY

MIDDLETON, WI

2
0

2
0

-0
9

2
2

_
S
IP

 /
 D

E
S
IG

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

B
M

IT
TA

L

NO. REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

EAST VIEWNORTHEAST VIEW

NORTHWEST VIEW
N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

OVERALL FIELD COLOR

ACCENT COLOR

TRIM COLOR: DOORS, 
WINDOWS, CORNERS, FASCIA

ASPHALT SHINGLE

STONE ACCENT

BARNBOARD

ALUMINUM: STOREFRONT 
WINDOWS, DOORS, 

COPING, CROSS

ACCENT COLOR

ROOF TOP EQUIPMENT 
SCREEN COLOR

NORTH VIEW
N.T.S.

SOUTH VIEW
N.T.S.

WEST VIEW
N.T.S.

OBSCURE FILM APPLIED TO 
INTERIOR OF GLAZING

GRAY SPANDREL PANEL

Page 40 of 4045



Certified Survey Map – Cross Lutheran Church, Texas...

Page 1 of 946



Page 2 of 947



Page 3 of 948



Page 4 of 949



Page 5 of 950



Page 6 of 951



Page 7 of 952



Page 8 of 953



Page 9 of 954


	Agenda
	Instructions on Participating in a Zoom Meeting
	Minutes of June 25, 2020, MWJZC meeting
	Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) & Design Review – Cross Lutheran Church--Phase 1, Texas Longhorn Drive / West of CTH M (PC-2577)
	Certified Survey Map – Cross Lutheran Church, Texas Longhorn Drive / West of CTH M (PC-2577)

